EXHIBIT 7

Sworn Affidavit with:

- **a)** A true and correct copy of the earliest set of By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus County Property Owners Association, Inc. in the Association's Official Records, as verified by the Board of Directors; and
- b) A true and correct copy of the Amended and Restated By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus County Property Owners Association, Inc., as adopted by a majority of the Board of Directors at a duly noticed meeting held on August 15, 2011.

AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF CITRUS

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, personally appeared DENNIS CONTOIS, who after being duly sworn, deposes and says:

- 1. I am a member of the Organizing Committee of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, and as such I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth herein.
- 2. I hereby certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of the earliest set of By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, in the Association's Official Records, as verified by the Board of Directors.
- 3. I hereby certify that the attached is a true and correct copy of the Amended and Restated By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, as adopted by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a duly noticed meeting held on August 15, 2011.

Further Affiant sayeth not.

DENNIS CONTOIS, AFFIANT

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of May 2024 by DENNIS CONTOIS, as a member of the Organizing Committee of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation. He is personally known to me or has provided valid proof of identification.

GERALYN ANNE BOND
MY COMMISSION # HH 272069
EXPIRES: June 5, 2026

Notary Public, State of Florida at Large

My Commission Expires: 65/2026

EXHIBIT 7(a)

A true and correct copy of the earliest set of By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus County Property Owners Association, Inc. in the Association's Official Records, as verified by the Board of Directors.

BY-LAWS

OF

CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

As used herein terms and words shall have the meaning stated in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions, Restrictions and Easements for the CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS subdivision and filed for record in the official records of Citrus County, Florida (the "Declaration")

ARTICLE II

LOCATION

Section 1. The principal office of the Association shall be 2416 North Essex Avenue, Hernando, Florida 32642.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Membership of the Association is as set forth in Article III of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

Section 2. The rights of membership are subject to the payment of Annual and Special Assessments as provided by Article II of the Declaration.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. The directors of the Association shall be elected at the annual meeting of the members as specified in Article VI herein. The election of Directors shall be decided by majority vote.

Section 2. Any director may be removed from office at any time with or without cause by the affirmative majority vote of the Association membership, except that the directors elected by the Declarant may be removed only by the Declarant and except that the directors named in the Articles of Incorporation may not be removed until the expiration fo their terms.

Section 3. The first meeting of the duly elected Board of Directors, for the purpose of organization, shall be held immediately after the annual meeting of members, provided the majority of the members of the Board elected be present. Any action taken at such meeting shall be by a majority of the whole Board. If the majority of the members of the Board elected shall not be present at that time, or if the directors shall fail to elect officers, the meeting of the Board to elect officers shall then be hend within thirty days after tha annual meeting of members upon three days' notice in writing to each member of the Board elected, stating the time, place and object of such meeting.

Section 4. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any place or places within Citrus County, Florida, on such days and at such hours as the Board of Directors may, by resolution appoint.

Section 5. No notice shall be required to be given of any regular meeting of the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the President or by any two members of the Board and may be held at any place or places within Citrus County, Florida, and at any time.

Section 7. Notice of each special meeting of the Board of Directors, stating the time place and purpose or purposes thereof, shall be given by or in behalf of the President or by or on behalf of the Secretary or by or on behalf of any two members of the Board to each member of the Board not less than three days by mail or one day by telephone or telegraph. Special meetings of the Board may also be held at any place and time without notice by unanimous waiver of notice by all the directors.

ARTICLE V

Section 1. Any officer may be removed at any time by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors at any duly called regular or special meeting of the Board.

Section 2. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. The President shall preside at all meetings of the members of the Association and of the Board of Directors. He shall have the general powers and duties of supervision and management of the Association which usually pertain to his office, and shall perform all such duties as are properly required of him by the Board of Directors.

Section 3. The Board of Directors shall elect one Vice President, who shall have such powers and perform such duties as usually pertain to such office or as are properly required of him by the Board of Directors. In the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall perform the duties and exercise the powers of the President.

Section 4. The Secretary shall issue notices of all meetings of the membership of the Association and the directors where notice of such meetings are required by law or in these By-Laws. He shall keep the minute of the meetings of the membership and of the Board of Directors.

Section 5. The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all the monies and securities of the Association. He shall enter on the books of the Association, to be kept by him for that purpose, full and accurate accounts of all monies received by him and paid by him on account of the Association. He shall sign such instruments as require his signature and shall perform all such duties as usually pertain to his office or as are properly required of him by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Vacancies in any office arising from any cause may be filled by the Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

Section 1. The regular annual meeting of the members shall be held on the third Monday of the month of March in each year beginning in 1987 at such time and place as shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Special meetings of the members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, the Vice President, the Seceretary or Treasurer, or by any two or more

members of the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the members who have a right to vote one-fourth of all the votes of the entire membership.

Section 3. Notice may be given to the member either personally, or by sending a copy of the notice through the mail, postage thereon fully paid, to his address appearing on the records of the Association. Each member shall register his address with the Secretary, and notices of meetings shall be mailed to him at such address. Notice of any meeting, regular or special, shall be mailed or personally delivered at least six days in advance of the meeting and shall set forth the general nature of the business to be transacted, provided, however, that if any business of any meeting shall involve any action governed by the Articles of Incorporation, notice of such meetings shall be given or sent as therein provided.

Section 4. The preence at the meeting of members entitled to cast 35% of the votes shall constitute quorum for any action governed by these By-Laws. If the required quorum is not present another meeting may be called and the required quorum shall be 17.5% of the members.

ARTICLE VII

BOOKS AND PAPERS

Section 1. The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to the inspection of any member of the Association.

ARTICLE VIII

COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors shall appoint committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.

ARTICLE IX

As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association Annual and Special Assessments.

ARTICLE X INDEMNIFICATION

The Association shall indemnify and hold harmless each director and officer of the Association from any liability, loss claim, action or suit, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs arising from or by virtue of any action, except willful or gross malfeasance or misfeasance, taken or failure to take into action relative to their service as such director or officer.

ARTICLE XI AMENDMENTS

Section 1. These By-Laws may be amended, by a vote of a majority of the Board of Directors; provided, however, the provisions which are governed by the Articles of Incorporation of this Association may not be amended except as provided in the Articles of Incorporation or applicable law and provided further that any matters stated herein to be or which are in fact governed by the Declaration may not be amended except as provided in such Declaration.

Section 2. In case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control, and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

EXHIBIT 7(b)

A true and correct copy of the Amended and Restated By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus County Property Owners Association, Inc., as adopted by a majority of the Board of Directors at a duly noticed meeting held on August 15, 2011.

CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION. INC c/o Village Services Cooperative, Inc. 2541 N Reston Terrace, Hernando, FL 34442

Amended and Restated By-Laws Of CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION. INC. A NOT FOR PROFIT CORPORATION

Whereas, the Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association Inc. was incorporated pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida on February 19, 1988, and

Whereas, subsequent to said incorporation and pursuant to the desires of the Board of Directors of the Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association Inc., it has become necessary to amend and restate the By-Laws and,

Whereas, pursuant to Article XV of the By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association Inc. said By-Laws may be amended by a majority vote of the Board of Directors.

Now therefore, the Board of Directors of the Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association Inc., a Florida Not-For-Profit Corporation, on this 15th day of August, 2011 does hereby declare, ratify and adopt the following amended and restated By-Laws of Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association Inc.

Amended and Restated By-Laws Of

CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

1.1 As used herein terms and words shall have the meaning stated in the Restrictive Covenants and Easements for the CAMBRIDGE GREENS OF CITRUS HILLS PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION and filed for record in the official records of Citrus County, Florida (the "Declaration")

ARTICLE II

LOCATION

2.1 The principal office of the Association shall be c/o Village Services Cooperative, Inc., 2541 N Reston Terrace, Hernando, FL 34442.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP

- 3.1 Membership of the Association is as set forth in Article III of the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.
- 3.2 The rights of membership are subject to the payment of Annual and Special Assessments as provided by Article VI of the Declaration.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- 4.1 The Board of Directors of the Association shall be elected at the annual meeting of the members as specified in Article VII herein. The election of Directors shall be decided by majority vote of the members.
- 4.2 Any director may be removed from office at any time with or without cause by the affirmative majority vote of the Association membership.
- 4.3 The first meeting of the duly elected Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the annual meeting for the purpose of organization, and to elect officers as described in Article V, provided the majority of the members elected to the board are present. Any action taken at such meeting shall be by a majority of the whole board. If the majority of the members of the board elected are not present at that time, or if the directors shall fail to elect officers as stated in Article V, the meeting of the Board to elect officers shall then be held within thirty days after the annual meeting of members upon three days notice in writing to each member of the Board elected, stating the time, place, and object of such meeting.
- 4.4 Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any place or places within Citrus County, Florida, on such days and at such hours as the Board of Directors may establish.

4.5 Board Meetings

A. A meeting of the board of directors of an association occurs whenever a quorum of the board gathers to conduct association business. Notices of all Board meetings shall be announced on the Association website and/or Channel 97 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting except in an emergency.

B. All meetings of the Board shall be open to all members except for the meetings between the board and its' attorney with respect to proposed or pending litigation where the contents of the discussion would otherwise be governed by attorney-client privilege and/or for the purpose of discussing personnel matters.

Members have the right to attend all meetings of the board and to speak on any matter placed on the agenda subject to the following rules: the member/speaker must be the owner of record; each member wishing to do so, upon being recognized by the chair, may speak up to three (3) minutes on that issue.

- C. Any parcel owner may tape record or videotape meetings of the board of directors, committee meetings or meetings of the members. The Board of Directors may adopt reasonable rules governing the taping of these meetings.
- D. An assessment may not be levied at a board meeting unless the notice of the meeting includes a statement that assessments will be considered and the nature of the assessments. Written notice of any meeting at which special assessments will be considered or at which amendments to rules regarding parcel use will be considered must be mailed, delivered, or electronically transmitted to the members and parcel owners and posted conspicuously on the property or broadcast on closed circuit cable television not less than 14 days before the meeting.
- E. Directors may not vote by proxy or secret ballot at board meetings, except the secret ballots may be used in the election of officers. This subsection also applies to the meetings of any committee or other similar body, when final decisions will be made regarding the expenditure of association funds, and to any body vested with the power to approve or disprove architectural decisions with respect to a specific parcel of residential property owned by a member of the community.
- F. Board Meetings shall generally follow this agenda format:

Call to Order
Roll Call
Approval of Minutes
Reports of Officers
Reports of Committees
Unfinished Business
New Business
Adjournment

4.6 Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be called at any time by the Secretary or by any two members of the Board and may be held at any place or places within Citrus County, Florida, and at any time. Special meetings are limited in scope and purpose and address a specific topic.

- 4.7 Emergency meetings, when held, shall be noticed and ratified at the next regular meeting of the Board of Directors.
- 4.8 Roberts Rules of Order shall apply in general in the conducting of all meetings.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

- As required else were in these bylaws, the Board of Directors shall at their first initial meeting, elect a President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer to serve for a term of two (2) years unless removed or due to resignation. The President and Vice President shall be required to be Directors.
- 5.2 President The President shall 1) be the chief executive officer of the Association, 2) preside at all meetings of the members and Directors, 3) have general and active management of the Association, 4) see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect, 5) ensure that the financial business of the Association is maintained to budget limitations, and to obtain Board approval before exceeding such, 6) execute bonds, contracts and mortgages requiring the seal of the Association after Board approval, except where permitted by law to be otherwise signed and executed, and the power to execute is delegated by the Board to some other officer or agent, 7) serve at the pleasure of the Board and comply with any other parameters established by the Board.
- Vice President The Vice President shall 1) have such powers and perform such duties as usually pertain to such office or are properly required of the office by the Board of Directors, 2) in the absence or disability of the President, perform the duties and exercise the powers of that office, 3) serve at the pleasure of the Board and comply with any other parameters established by the Board.
- 5.4 A. Secretary The Secretary shall 1) issue all notices for members meetings and Board of Directors meetings, 2) record and convert to written form the proceedings of the aforementioned meetings, 3) maintain originals of all minutes for association records, 4) keep on file all committee reports, 5) maintain record book(s) in which the covenants, articles, bylaws, amendments thereto, policies, rules, minutes and such are entered; bring said book to each meeting 6) maintain the official membership roll 7) prepare the order of business for each meeting 8) conduct the general correspondence of the association 9) serve at the pleasure of the Board and comply with any other parameters established by the Board.
 - B. The Secretary shall tape all board and members meetings and, after the minutes are converted to written form, maintain the tapes for one (1) year.
- 5.5 Treasurer The Treasurer shall 1) perform such duties as usually pertain to the office of Treasurer, 2) have the care and custody of all the monies and securities of the Association, 3) maintain the books, and enter in them full and accurate accounts of all monies received and expended on behalf of the Association, 4)

sign such instruments as require the Treasurers signature 5) prepare the "Proposed Budget" for the forthcoming year for the Board, 6) prepare such financial reports as required by the Board and the law, 7) ensure expenditures are within budget limitations and report potential problems to the Board, 8) assign such duties as determined to assistants or contractors when authorized by the Board, 9) serve at the pleasure of the Board and comply with any other parameters established by the Board.

- 5.6 Any officer may be removed at any time with or without cause by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Board of Directors at any duly called regular or special meeting of the Board. Vacancies in any office arising from any cause may be filled by the remaining Board of Directors at any regular or special meeting.
- 5.7 The same individual may simultaneously hold more than one office. A duly appointed officer may appoint one or more assistant officers if needed. All officers and assistant officers are responsible to the Board of Directors. Under no circumstances shall the President and Treasurer be the same person.
- Any officer may have one or more assistants, such assistants shall be approved by and serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors, subject to removal with or without cause.
- 5.9 Vacancies in any office arising from any cause shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining Board of Directors at any called meeting of said Directors.

ARTICLE VI

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND CONTROLS

- 6.1 Budgets The association shall prepare an annual budget. The budget must reflect the estimated revenues and expenses for that year and the estimated surplus or deficit as of the end of the current year. The budget must be set out separately all fees or charges for recreational amenities, whether owned by the association, the developer, or another person. The association shall provide each member with a copy of the annual budget or a written notice that a copy of the budget is available upon request at no charge to the member. The copy must be provided to the member within the time limits set forth in subsection (8.2).
- 6.2 Financial Reporting The association shall prepare an annual financial report within 60 days after the close of the fiscal year. The association shall, within the time limits set forth in subsection (8.2) provide each member with a copy of the annual financial report or a written notice that a copy of the financial report is available upon request at no charge to the member.
 - A. As long as the association has total annual revenues of less than \$100,000, they shall prepare a report of cash receipts and expenditures.

- B. A report of cash receipts and disbursements shall disclose the amount of receipt classifications and the amount of expenses by accounts and expense classifications, including but not limited to the following, as applicable: costs for security, professional, and management fees and expenses; taxes; costs for recreation facilities; expenses for refuse collection and utility services; expenses fro lawn care; costs for building maintenance and repair insurance costs; administration and salary expenses; and reserves if maintained by the association.
- 6.3 Annual Budget Approval The budget will be approved in the November meeting each year and annual dues, based on that budget, announced.
- 6.4 All Association checks will require two (2) signatures.
- 6.5 There shall be 'Specified Reserves' for future expenses as required by a written study and plan. The reserve fund shall encompass such items as sign maintenance and replacement, catastrophic events, legal proceedings and landscaping.
- 6.6 'Unrestricted funds' for unplanned expenses shall be included in savings. The amount will be no more than equal that of the annual budget.

ARTICLE VII

MEETING OF MEMBERS

- 7.1 The regular annual meeting of the members shall be held each year during the first quarter at a date, time and place to be determined appropriate by the Board of Directors.
- 7.2 Special meetings of the members for any purpose may be called at any time by the President, the Vice President, the Secretary or Treasurer, or by any two or more members of the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the members who have a right to vote one-fourth of all the votes of the entire membership.
- 7.3 Notice of Meetings The association shall give all members actual notice of all membership meetings, which shall be mailed, delivered, or electronically transmitted to the members not less than 14 days prior to the meeting. Evidence of compliance with this 14 day notice shall be made by an affidavit executed by the person providing the notice and filed upon execution among the official records of the association. In addition to mailing, delivering, or electronically transmitting the notice of any meeting, the association may, by reasonable rule, adopt a procedure for conspicuously posting and repeatedly broadcasting the notice and the agenda on a closed circuit cable television system serving the association. When broadcast notice is provided, the notice and agenda must be broadcast in a manner and with sufficient continuous length of time so as to allow an average reader to observe the notice and read and comprehend the entire content of the notice and the agenda.

- 7.4 Right to Speak Members have the right to attend all membership meetings and to speak at any meeting with reference to all items included on the agenda. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in the governing documents or any rules adopted by the board or membership, a member has the right to speak for at least 3 minutes on any item, provided that the member submits a written request to speak prior to the meeting. The association may adopt written reasonable rules governing the frequency, duration, and other manner of member statements, which rules must be consistent with this subsection.
- 7.5 Proxy Voting The members have the right, unless otherwise provided in the governing documents, to vote in person or by proxy. To be valid, a proxy must be dated, must state the date, time and place of the meeting for which it was given, and must be signed by the authorized person who executed the proxy. A proxy is effective only for the specific meeting for which it was originally given, as the meeting may lawfully be adjourned and reconvened from time to time, and automatically expires 90 days after the date of the meeting for which it was originally given. A proxy is revocable at any time at the pleasure of the person who executes it. If the proxy form expressly so provides, any proxy holder may appoint, in writing, a substitute to act in his or her place.
- 7.6 Roberts Rules of Order shall apply in general in the conducting of the meeting.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICIAL RECORDS

- 8.1 OFFICIAL RECORDS.--The association shall maintain each of the following items, when applicable, which constitute the official records of the association:
 - A. Copies of any plans, specifications, permits, and warranties related to improvements constructed on the common areas or other property that the association is obligated to maintain, repair, or replace.
 - B. A copy of the bylaws of the association and of each amendment to the bylaws.
 - C. A copy of the articles of incorporation of the association and of each amendment thereto.
 - D. A copy of the declaration of covenants and a copy of each amendment thereto.
 - E. A copy of the current rules of the homeowners' association.
 - F. The minutes of all meetings of the board of directors and of the members, which minutes must be retained for at least 7 years.

- G. A current roster of all members and their mailing addresses and parcel identifications. The association shall also maintain the electronic mailing addresses and the numbers designated by members for receiving notice sent by electronic transmission of those members consenting to receive notice by electronic transmission. The electronic mailing addresses and numbers provided by unit owners to receive notice by electronic transmission shall be removed from association records when consent to receive notice by electronic transmission is revoked. However, the association is not liable for an erroneous disclosure of the electronic mail address or the number for receiving electronic transmission of notices.
- H. All of the association's insurance policies or a copy thereof, which policies must be retained for at least 7 years.
- I. A current copy of all contracts to which the association is a party, including, without limitation, any management agreement, lease, or other contract under which the association has any obligation or responsibility. Bids received by the association for work to be performed must also be considered official records and must be kept for a period of 1 year.
- J. The financial and accounting records of the association, kept according to good accounting practices. All financial and accounting records must be maintained for a period of at least 7 years. The financial and accounting records must include:
 - 1. Accurate, itemized, and detailed records of all receipts and expenditures.
 - 2. A current account and a periodic statement of the account for each member, designating the name and current address of each member who is obligated to pay assessments, the due date and amount of each assessment or other charge against the member, the date and amount of each payment on the account, and the balance due.
 - 3. All tax returns, financial statements, and financial reports of the association.
 - 4. Any other records that identify, measure, record, or communicate financial information.
- K. A copy of the disclosure summary described in s. <u>720.401(1)</u>.
- L. All other written records of the association not specifically included in the foregoing which are related to the operation of the association.
- 8.2 INSPECTION AND COPYING OF RECORDS.--The official records shall be maintained within the state and must be open to inspection and available for photocopying by members or their authorized agents at reasonable times and places within 10 business days after receipt of a written request for access. This subsection may be complied with by having a copy of the official records

available for inspection or copying in the community. If the association has a photocopy machine available where the records are maintained, it must provide parcel owners with copies on request during the inspection if the entire request is limited to no more than 25 pages.

- A. The failure of an association to provide access to the records within 10 business days after receipt of a written request creates a rebuttable presumption that the association willfully failed to comply with this subsection.
- B. A member who is denied access to official records is entitled to the actual damages or minimum damages for the association's willful failure to comply with this subsection. The minimum damages are to be \$50 per calendar day up to 10 days, the calculation to begin on the 11th business day after receipt of the written request.
- C. The association may adopt reasonable written rules governing the frequency, time, location, notice, records to be inspected, and manner of inspections, but may not impose a requirement that an owner demonstrate any proper purpose for the inspection, state any reason for the inspection. or limit an owner's right to inspect records to less than one 8-hour business day per month. The association may impose fees to cover the costs of providing copies of the official records, including, without limitation, the costs of copying. The association may charge up to 50 cents per page for copies made on the association's photocopier. If the association does not have a photocopy machine available where the records are kept, or if the records requested to be copied exceed 25 pages in length, the association may have copies made by an outside vendor and may charge the actual cost of copying. The association shall maintain an adequate number of copies of the recorded governing documents, to ensure their availability to members and prospective members. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the following records shall not be accessible to owners:
 - 1. Any record protected by the lawyer-client privilege as described in s. 90.502 and any record protected by the work-product privilege, including, but not limited to, any record prepared by an association attorney or prepared at the attorney's express direction which reflects a mental impression, conclusion, litigation strategy, or legal theory of the attorney or the association and was prepared exclusively for civil or criminal litigation or for adversarial administrative proceedings or which was prepared in anticipation of imminent civil or criminal litigation or imminent adversarial administrative proceedings until the conclusion of the litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings.
 - 2. Information obtained by an association in connection with the approval of the lease, sale, or other transfer of a parcel.
 - 3. Disciplinary, health, insurance, and personnel records of the association's employees.

4. Medical records of owners or community residents.

D. Inspection Process:

- 1. A written request must be submitted for inspection of association records.
- 2. The request must specify what records are to be inspected.
- 3. Inspection time is limited to one (1) eight (8) hour business day. Association business hours are from 9:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday.
- 4. A Board member or designee may accompany the requester and remain with the requester during the inspection.
- 5. Official records are specified in Florida Statute 720.303 (4).

ARTICLE IX

COMMITTEES

- 9.1 The Board of Directors shall, by resolution, appoint committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.
- 9.2 Meetings of a committee to take final action on behalf of the Board of Directors or the Association or to make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the association budget are subject to the requirements of Article 4.5 of these Bylaws. Meetings of a committee that does not take final action on behalf of the Board of Directors, the Association or make recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the association budget are exempt from this requirement.
- 9.3 All committees must keep minutes of their meetings.
- 9.4 Nominating Committee:
 - A. The Board of Directors shall appoint a Nominating Committee at the monthly meeting following the annual meeting. Current board members are eligible for this committee.
 - B. The committee shall be chaired by a board member.

- C. In addition to the chair, the committee shall consist of two (2) association members. Each committee member shall serve until the conclusion of the annual meeting at which the scheduled election is held.
- D. The committee shall be responsible for compiling the list of Board of Directors nominees for presentation to the voting membership. This list shall be presented to the Board forty-five (45) days prior to the date of the annual meeting at which the election is to be held so a ballot may be prepared.
- E. Members shall still be able to nominate themselves from the floor at the annual meeting where the election is held.
- F. Nominees may prepare short resumes for distribution to the voting membership. Resumes shall not be edited or altered by the committee, but presented as submitted by the nominee; the association is not liable for the contents of the resumes.

9.4 Social Committee:

- A. The Social Committee and its chair shall be appointed by the Board.
- B. The Social Committee shall have total responsibility for organizing and conducting the association summer picnic and the 'trash to treasure' sale. The committee shall gather required volunteers, determine dates for events, obtain any necessary permits and material and supplies, arrange the site for required activities and provide members with notices of the events. The committee shall have a budget set by the board for the events and shall provide receipts for all expenses. Any surplus from an event will be returned to the treasury. The committee shall make monthly or bimonthly reports to the Board of their activity. The committee serves at the pleasure of the Board.
- 9.5 A Sunshine Committee will operate as part of the Social Committee and shall, as appropriate, send cards and flowers to community members in need.

9.6 Welcoming Committee:

- A. The Welcoming Committee shall be appointed by the Board.
- B. The Welcoming Committee shall have responsibility to contact each new owner of a property (lot/home) when a deed transfer takes place. The committee shall have a budget set by the Board and shall provide receipts for all expenses. They shall express the Association's pleasure in having them in the community and provide local information and a gift basket. The Welcoming Committee serves at the pleasure of the Board.

9.7 Architectural Control Board (ACB):

- A. ACB members and their chair shall be appointed by the Board and serve at the pleasure of the Board.
- B. The ACB will be responsible for following the process and criteria as specified in all the governing documents of the Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association.

C. Property Owner Appeals Procedure for Denied ACB Applications

The property owner has 30 days to file an appeal with the Board of Directors. It must be submitted in writing and should contain (as a minimum): any and all specified drawings, a detailed explanation as to why the property owner feels the decision should be reversed and any other information or data that the property owner believes will help in the appeals process.

Upon receipt of said application, the Board will review the matter at its next scheduled meeting and appoint 2 directors to meet with the property owner (and his designees) to discuss the matter further. The appointed directors may also meet with ACB members in an effort to gain more information and understanding for the denied application.

The 2 directors shall present their findings at the next scheduled board meeting and the Board shall rule on the appeal at that time.

If the appeal is denied, the owner has the right to utilize the FL statutes governing Property Owners Associations. The owner is responsible for his costs and will not be reimbursed by the Association.

D. In the absence of a quorum, two (2) ACB members may conduct business and approve requests with review and signature of any serving director. A director may not participate in the appeals process for any request s/he has signed.

ARTICLE X

ELECTIONS

- 10.1 Election of Directors shall be by written ballots of the membership. Proxies shall be permitted in the election of the Directors.
- 10.2 Not less than thirty (30) days before a scheduled election, the association shall mail or deliver, whether by separate association mailing or included in another association mailing or delivery, to each member entitled to vote a notice of the date of election along with a ballot which shall list (alphabetically) all candidates known at that time and a proxy. This notice shall also include notice when the votes are to be counted. Members may mail or bring their ballot to the meeting.

- 10.3 Members may nominate themselves from the floor at the scheduled election. The time for these nominations and casting of votes for these nominations shall be shown on the meeting agenda.
- 10.4 Elections shall be decided by a plurality of those ballots cast. There shall be no quorum requirement for elections; however, at least twenty (20) percent of the eligible voters must cast votes in order to have a valid election of members of the board.

ARTICLE XI

DISCLOSURE SUMMARY

11.1 Every owner in Cambridge Greens of Citrus Hills Property Owners Association is solely responsible to provide the 'Disclosure Summary' required by current and/or changed or amended Florida Statutes, Chapter 720.401.

ARTICLE XII

ASSESSMENTS

- 12.1 As more fully provided in the Declaration, each owner is obligated to pay all Association Annual and Special Assessments.
- 12.2 Assessments shall be due on an annual basis. Due date shall be the 31st of January of each new budget year.
- 12.3 The Association shall charge a late fee of \$25 and interest at the highest rate permitted by law for payment of assessments thirty (30) days past the due date.

ARTICLE XIII

ENFORCEMENT

- 13.1 The failure of the Association to enforce any of the governing documents, or to remedy any violation thereof, at any time, or from time to time, shall not constitute a waiver by the Association of those or other provisions of the governing documents.
- Each member and the member's tenants, guests, and invitees, are governed by, and must comply with, the governing documents of the community.

13.3 Remedies/Fines shall follow Florida Statute 720.305. The Statute provides for the following. The Association may levy reasonable fines, not to exceed \$100 per violation, against any member or any tenant, guest, or invitee for a violation of any of the governing documents requirements. A fine may be levied on the basis of each day of a continuing violation, with a single notice and opportunity for hearing, except that no such fine shall exceed \$1,000 in the aggregate unless otherwise provided in the governing documents. The Association may place a lien on a property for fines totally \$1,000. In any action to recover a fine, the prevailing party is entitled to collect its reasonable attorney's fees and costs from the non prevailing party as determined by the court. The Association may suspend use rights, including voting rights, of a property owner whose fine is delinquent more than 90 days.

A fine or suspension may not be imposed without notice of at least 14 days to the person sought to be fined or suspended and an opportunity for a hearing before a committee of at least three members appointed by the board who are not officers, directors, or employees of the association, or the spouse, parent, child, brother, or sister of an officer, director, or employee. If the committee, by majority vote, does not approve a proposed fine or suspension, it may not be imposed.

13.4 The requirements of this subsection do not apply to any member because of the failure of the member to pay assessments or other charges when due.

The Association shall have the right to recover from the violating Owner all costs, including reasonable attorneys fees and costs, incurred by it in any action to enforce any term, condition, restriction or covenant contained in the governing documents, including those incurred prior to judicial proceedings and appellate proceedings.

ARTICLE XIV

INDEMNIFICATION

14.1 The Association shall indemnify and hold harmless each director and officer of the Association from any liability, loss claim, action or suit, including but not limited to attorneys' fees and costs arising from or by virtue of any action, except willful or gross malfeasance or misfeasance, taken or failure to take into action relative to their service as such director or officer.

ARTICLE XV

AMENDMENTS

15.1 These By-Laws may be amended, by vote of a majority of the Board of Directors; provided, however, the provisions which are governed by the Articles of

Incorporation of this Association may not be amended except as provided in the Articles of Incorporation or applicable law and provided further that any matters stated herein to be or which are in fact governed by the Declaration may not be amended except as provided in such declaration.

15.2 In case of conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control, and in case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-laws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XVI

Communications to Members

16.1 The Association website and/or Channel 97 will be the primary communication vehicles for the Cambridge Greens Property Owners Association. All required meeting notices, document changes and other relevant information will be communicated in this way. Property owners will have the option of downloading information from the website or contacting Village Services, Inc. for copies.

ARTICLE XVII

LEASE RESTRICTIONS

All leases, rentals and occupancy of homes by persons other than the owner shall be governed by the following provisions:

- 17.1 Renters, tenants, occupants and guests are required to comply with all applicable Association documents and guidelines, vis-a-vis property care and maintenance in particular. Owners, per Restrictive Covenant 2.13, have ultimate responsibility for compliance.
- 17.2 No owner may rent his/her real property for a period less than six (6) months. No individual rooms may be rented whether as a 'bed and breakfast' arrangement or otherwise.
- 17.3 Owners are requested to furnish the name and contact information of renters to the Association so that governing documents can be provided and they can be welcomed to the community.
- 17.4 Any violation of any provision of the governing documents is the obligation of the property-owner to correct.
- 17.5 The property owner shall provide the Association with a written statement naming a point-of-contact in case of emergency such as a natural disaster or abandonment.
- 17.6 The Association may promulgate rules and forms to comply with the foregoing.